In Dawlish Manor House there hangs a bell. Why?

Dear Members

We are grateful to David Force who spotted
that a Dawlish deed of 1813 was available for
sale on E-bay. He purchased the deed and has
given it to the Group generously refusing to
allow us to refund his costs. It is still being
analysed but concerns the series of transactions
which enabled John Edye Manning to acquire
the ‘beach waste’ and canalize the Brook.

We are also grateful to Noel Worsfold for lend-
ing us the deeds of St Annes, Westcliff Road
which push back the date when building on
Westcliff Road began to 1922.

Work is proceeding on various monographs
which we hope to publish very soon. These
include a joint publication by Tricia, Jo de
Lusignan and Betty Roberts on ‘The Old Vicar-
age’ (very topical this), a history of Oaklands
House by Iris Long, and my own (no doubt
long awaited) study of the ‘Newspapers of
Dawlish and South Devon’. In the meantime
we have published a second printing of
‘William’s War’ by Chris Penn which received
a substantial boost when the Dawlish Gazette
printed a long article based on the book just
when we were down to our last copies. Remem-
ber, all our monographs are in short print runs
so don’t wait too long before grabbing your
copies.

As you may know Jo and Paul de Lusignan, our
treasurer and publications secretary respec-
tively, have been seriously ill recently and we
wish them both a speedy and complete recov-
ery.

Bob Thompson

During WWII the Royal Navy lost well over 1,000 ves-
sels to enemy action. To counter the anticipated losses,
carly in the war, a vast ship-building programme was
| begun. The huge expense involved forced the Govern-
ment to look to the British people as well as to borrowing
from other countries. The peoples’ generosity is reflected
| in the Warship Weeks of 1941/42. During these weeks
| concerts, dances and other fund-raising events were held
| to encourage public financial support in the form of Na-
tional Savings and War Bonds etc. Communities were
then able to 'adopt' a warship, receiving a 'shield’ from the
Admiralty in recognition and often, in return, presenting
‘their ship' with a commemorative plaque. Of course, the
type of ship depended on the amount of money that could
be realistically raised by the community. In Dawlish's
case a minesweeper trawler was envisaged; whilst a hull
would cost £40,000 the completed ship would require &
total of £62,000.

Dawlish Town Council, under the leadership of the Chairman Mr T.C. Holman JP, set
the week beginning Saturday 22nd November as the Town's Warship Week. The even!
opened in grand style with a military procession and march-past led by a naval contin-
gent "armed with rifles and fixed bayonets” and accompanied by a band of the Royal
Marines. Other military participants included a detachment of Norwegian seamen and
units representing WRNS, WAAF, ATS, ATC, Royal Artillery and Home Guard. The
salute, in The Strand, was taken by Captain R S Cunliffe RN of Royal Naval College
Dartmouth. At the following opening ceremony Mr Holman announced receipt of
many telegrams of good wishes including those from the First Sea Lord of the Admi-
ralty, Chancellor of the Exchequer, the Lord Lt, of the County and the Regional Com-
missioner for National Savings. At the end of the first day, funds and deposits pledged
totalled £14050, by Wednesday this had risen to £33630.

Amongst the weeks events there was a display of minesweeping technology at the Hut,
a poster competition for school children,. a whist drive, Townswomen's Guild efforts
and a display by the Daphne Dance School. Wednesday saw an aerial display by two
fighters. The band of the Devonshire Regiment visited twice. The combined efforts of
the Town surpassed everybody's expectations with a final total exceeding £65000.

So that's how Dawlish got its Ship.

The ship was HMS Bay, a 'tree’ class Trawler-Minesweeper and one of a series of 20
including HMS Ash, Birch, Chestnut etc. Launched in December 1939, she was pur-
pose-built for this role as opposed to being a converted commercial vessel. This class
of ship was 164 feet long, 530 tons displacement and had a complement of 35 men.
Armament included a 12 1b gun and Anti Aircraft machine guns. These ships were
crewed by members of the Royal Naval Patrol Service, in the main officers of the
Royal Naval Reserve, skippers and mates of the fishing fleets together with fishermen,
tug-men and lighter-men. It was in effect a navy within the Royal Navy and became
known as 'Harry Tate's Navy' after the music hall comedian of the 1920's/30's who was
eternally confounded by modern gadgets... the embodiment of ordinary man struggling
with the irritations he could not control!

Little can be found recorded of the Ship's contribution to the war effort, just mere men-






